
 

 
 
            

 
 

 
i 

Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes 
 

Date: Wednesday, 20 February 2019 

Time: 10.30 am  

Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2, The Guildhall, Market Square, Cambridge, CB2 
3QJ 

Contact: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk, tel 01223 457000 
 
Agenda 
 
Member Development Programme 
 
9.30 to 10.30 AM  -  Committee Room One 
 
Cambridge East – A strategic transport overview by David Allatt, Transport 
Assessment Manager at Cambridgeshire County Council 

1    Apologies   

2    Declarations of Interest   

3    Minutes  (PAGES 3 - 6) 
 
All Committee Members may vote on this item 

4    18/0355/FUL - Darwin Green One, Land Between 
Huntingdon Road and Histon Road Cambridge  

(PAGES 7 - 
18) 

Public Document Pack



 

 
ii 

 

Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes Members:  

Cambridge City Council: Cllrs Blencowe (Chair), Bird, Page-Croft, 
Sargeant, Smart and Tunnacliffe, Alternates: Holt, Nethsingha, Moore and 
Thornburrow 

Cambridgeshire County Council: Cllrs Bradnam, Harford, Hudson and 
Richards,  Alternates: Cuffley, Kavanagh, Kindersley, Nethsingha, 
Whitehead and Wotherspoon 

South Cambridgeshire District Council: Cllrs Bygott, Chamberlain, Hunt, 
de Lacey (Vice-Chair), Sollom and Williams, Alternates: Allen, Cone, 
Ellington, Howell, Cheung Johnson, Topping, Waters and Van de Weyer 

 

Information for the public 

The public may record (e.g. film, audio, tweet, blog) meetings which are open to the 
public. For details go to: 
www.cambridge.gov.uk/have-your-say-at-committee-meetings 

For full information about committee meetings, committee reports, councillors and 
the democratic process:  

 Website: http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk  

 Email: democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk 

 Phone: 01223 457000 
 

http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/have-your-say-at-committee-meetings
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk


Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes JDC/1
 Wednesday, 19 December 2018 

 

 
 
 

1 

JOINT DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE - CAMBRIDGE FRINGES  
 19 December 2018 
 10.30  - 11.45 am 
 
Present:  Councillors Blencowe (Chair), Bird, Page-Croft, Smart, Tunnacliffe, 
Bradnam, Bygott, Hunt, de Lacey (Vice-Chair), Sollom and Williams 
 
Officers Present: 
Committee Manager: Sarah Steed 
 
Developer Representatives: 
Primary Executive Head Teacher with Anglia Learning, Prue Rayner 
Lead Designer RHP Architects, Kevin Myers 
 
 

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL 

 

18/39/JDCC Apologies 
 

Apologies were received from County Councillors Harford, Hudson and 
Richards and City Councillor Sargeant. 

18/40/JDCC Declarations of Interest 
 

Councillor  Item Interest 

South Cambs 
Councillor Bygott 

18/42/JDCC Personal: Had not 
been provided with 
planning training. 

18/41/JDCC Minutes 
 
As the meeting was not quorate the minutes would be tabled at the next 
meeting for approval. 

18/42/JDCC Wing Primary School, Land North of Newmarket Road 
 
The Committee received a presentation from Prue Rayner Primary Executive 
Head Teacher with Anglia Learning and Kevin Myers Lead Designer RHP 
Architects on the Wing Primary School, Land North of Newmarket Road. 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes                                      JDC/2                                   Wednesday, 19 December 2018 

 

 
 
 

2 

 
The presentation covered: 
 

 Access to the main hall from the market square to enable the facility to 
be used by community groups. 

 Classrooms were at the rear of the development so that they did not face 
the public. 

 There were different zones for early years and key stages 1 and 2. 

 Wanted to encourage controlled access to woodland for outside play, 
growing and habitat area. 

 Sustainability and guidelines for modern buildings.   
 
 
Members raised comments/questions as summarised below. Answers were 
supplied, but as this was a pre-application presentation, none of the answers 
were to be regarded as binding and so are not included in the minutes. 
 

 Asked where the catchment area was and how pupil numbers 
would be managed. 

 Queried how parents would drop off and collect children from 
school. 

 Queried how lorries would access the car park for deliveries. 

 Queried what access community groups would have to the car park 
outside school hours. 

 Asked if the outdoor play area would be floodlit and queried the 
impact this would have on neighbouring houses. 

 Asked how the school would be built out. 

 Queried the impact of the school opening on neighbouring schools. 

 Queried if the perimeter of the school would have security fencing. 

 Queried if the design of the school provided facilities for children 
with special educational needs. 

 Queried if there were plans to increase cycle or scooter parking at 
the school. 

 Asked about heating and cooling system within the school. 

 Asked how Anglian Learning would finance the initial build and 
provide for long term maintenance of the school. 

 Asked how the nursery would be accessed. 

 Queried disabled parking provision and location to the entrances to 
the school. 

 Queried size of form groups. 

 Queried the decision to be a specialist STEM (Science technology, 

Page 4



Joint Development Control Committee - Cambridge Fringes                                      JDC/3                                   Wednesday, 19 December 2018 

 

 
 
 

3 

engineering and mathematics) school. 

 Queried if qualified teaching staff would be employed.  
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 11.45 am 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Report by: Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development    

Date:  20rd February 2019 

       

Application  
Number  

 

18/0355/FUL 
 

 

Date Received 19th March 2018 Officer Aaron Coe 
 
Target Date 

 
Eot 20th February 
2019 

  

 
Parishes/Wards 

 
Castle 

  

 
Site 

 
Darwin Green One  
Land Between Huntingdon Road and Histon Road 
Cambridge  
 

Proposal Temporary use of the ground floor of Block B, Plot 70, 
BDW1 (first residential phase) as a Community Room 
 

Applicant Barratt Homes 
 
 

SUMMARY 1. The application proposes to deliver a 
temporary community room prior to the 
50th dwelling at Darwin Green One, 
allowing the permanent community 
rooms to be delivered upon completion 
of the 300th dwelling occupation. 

2. The temporary community facility will 
enable community cohesion in the first 
phases of the development. 

3. There will be no harmful impacts on 
neighbour amenity.  

RECOMMENDATION APPROVAL and agreement to the 
provision of the temporary community 
room by the occupation of the 50th unit and 
a revised trigger for provision of the 
permanent community centre on 
completion of the 300th dwelling as part of 
a Deed of Variation to the 2013 outline 
S106 Agreement.  

 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



1.0       SITE DESCRIPTION/AREA CONTEXT 
 
1.1 The application site, known as Darwin Green 1 (DG1, previously the NIAB 

site), is a 52.87 Ha site situated on land between Huntingdon Road and 
Histon Road.   It is located on the northwest fringe of the City bounded by 
Huntingdon Road to the southwest, Whitehouse Lane and a public footpath to 
the northwest.  Histon Road is to the north and residential developments form 
the existing urban edge along the eastern boundary.  To the north west of the 
site is the Darwin Green Two site within the South Cambridgeshire District 
Council (SCDC) boundary. 

 
1.2 The site has outline consent for a development of up to 1593 dwellings and 

associated infrastructure and community uses. The Local Centre reserved 
matters 15/1670/REM was approved on 18 May 2016 and provided 114 
residential units and local centre uses, including a library, community rooms, 
a health centre and retail units.  
 

1.3 The outline S106 agreement required the community rooms to be 
constructed, completed and fitted out prior to the occupation of the 101st 
dwelling. 
 

1.4 The permanent community rooms are proposed to be located in the Local 
Centre REM as Block H1, comprising two floors with two flexible space rooms 
(over floor one and floor two) with storage, a lift, kitchen, toilets, cleaners 
store and entrance hall.  The approximate floor size is 197m2, with 115m2 for 
meeting and breakout spaces.  This facility would be managed by Cambridge 
City Council in due course under the provisions of the S106 agreement. 
 

1.5 The site is not within a conservation area 
 

2.0 THE PROPOSAL 
 
2.1 The planning application seeks approval for a temporary community room to 

be constructed and made available prior to the first occupation at DG1. This 
temporary facility is proposed to allow the original 101st dwelling occupation 
delivery of the permanent community room to be delayed until 300 dwellings 
occupation.  
 

2.2 The temporary community room will be on the ground floor of Block B 
(approved residential apartment), plot 70 of BDW1 (the first residential 
phase), which received approval under reserved matters 16/0208/REM. The 
internal layout of the proposed temporary community room measures 
approximately 50m2 which includes a meeting room (approx. 30.2m2), office 
(7.2m2), kitchenette and toilet (cumulative 9.92m2).  The temporary facility 
premises are proposed to be open upon completion of the 50th dwelling. 
 

2.3 The first, second and third storeys of Block B are proposed to remain 
consistent in design and use (2 bed apartments) to that already approved. 

 

Page 8



2.4 The temporary community facility would have access to ten car parking 
spaces (including one disabled space) adjacent to the sales centre.  

 
2.5 Cycle parking is proposed adjacent to the sales centre.  No specific details 

were provided. 
 
3.0 SITE HISTORY 
 
Reference 
(City Council) 

Description Decision 

07/0003/OUT  Mixed use development comprising up to 
1593 dwellings, primary school, community 
facilities, retail units (use classes A1, A2, A3, 
A4 and A5) and associated infrastructure 
including vehicular, pedestrian and cycleway 
accesses, open space and drainage works. 
 

Approved  

16/0208/REM Reserved matters application for first housing 
phase (known as BDW1) including 173 
dwellings with associated internal roads, car 
parking, landscaping, amenity and public 
open space.   
 

Approved 

15/1670/REM Reserved matters for 114 residential units 
and local centre, including library, community 
rooms, health centre and retail units pursuant 
to outline consent 07/0003/OUT. 

Approved 

 
 
4.0 PUBLICITY   
 
4.1 Advertisement:      No 
 Adjoining Owners:      Yes  
 Site Notice Displayed:     Yes  
 
5.0 POLICY 
 
5.1 Relevant Development Plan policies 
 

PLAN POLICY NUMBER 

Cambridge 
Local Plan 2018 

Policy 13: Areas of major change and opportunity areas 
Policy 19: NIAB 1 Area of Major Change 
Policy 55: Responding to context 
Policy 56: Creating successful places  
Policy 73: Community, sports and leisure facilities 
Policy 82: Parking management 

 

Page 9



5.2 Relevant Central Government Guidance, Supplementary Planning Documents 
and Material Considerations 

 

Central 
Government 
Guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework March 2018 

National Planning Policy Framework – Planning Practice 
Guidance March 2014 

 
6.0 CONSULTATIONS 
 

Cambridgeshire County Council (Highways Development Control) 
 
6.1 The Highway Authority does not consider that this application will have any 

significant adverse impact upon the operation of the highway network. 
 

Urban Design and Conservation team 
 
6.2 No objections. 
 

Community Development Officer 
 
6.3 Following discussions between Cambridge City Council and the applicants, it 

was agreed that a temporary community facility should be delivered at the 
earliest unit completion as possible. The Community Development Officer 
(CDO) has accepted the design, layout and furniture proposed.  It is 
welcomed by the CDO that the facility proposes to provide space for meetings 
as well as a base for community development officers. 
 

6.4 The CDO considers the provision of this temporary community facility 
necessary from first occupation. It is acknowledged that the permanent 
facilities within Darwin Green 1 development are to be part of the local centre 
that comes forward slightly later, meaning the access to the permanent 
community facility would have been impacted by construction work in the local 
centre development. This would significantly affect access to the facility. 
 

6.5 We acknowledge the possible limitations of the size of the room, but it is 
important to have a facility to meet with residents on site in the early days for 
small meetings etc. to welcome residents and a base of the community 
development staff to work out of. There will be activities at other centres 
locally (e.g. Storey’s field) in the interim which we will signpost people to. 
 

6.6 The CDO has recommended that the details of the opening hours are 
conditioned which will be consistent with that already approved for the 
permanent community rooms - 07:00 to 23:00 Monday to Saturday; and, 
08:00 to 22:00 Sundays/Bank holidays.   

 
6.7 The use of the facility by the developers will be permitted with the agreement 

of the CDO.  The terms of lease are also to be agreed, which shall include a 
peppercorn agreement for any service charges and building insurance to be 
met by the developer. 

Page 10



Access Officer 
 
6.8 No objections. 
 

Environmental Health Team 
 
6.9 The Environmental Health Officer has raised no objections to the Community 

Room, however has recommended conditions of consent in respect of the 
following:  

 
- A noise insulation condition to ensure noise is appropriately mitigated on 

adjoining residential neighbours; and, 
 

- Amplified music and voice is not to be permitted. 
 
6.10 The above responses are a summary of the comments that have been 

received.  Full details of the consultation responses can be inspected on the 
application file.   

 
7.0 REPRESENTATIONS 
 
7.1 The following owners/occupiers/groups have objected to the application: 
 

 Ascension Rectory, 95 Richmond Road 

 37 Hoadly Road 

7.2 The representations objecting to the application can be summarised as 
follows: 

 The revised trigger point of 500 homes for the main community facility if 
a large number of homes before a permanent facility is available.  

 The community room will be used also by people from the NIAB frontage 
site who do not have community rooms/any meeting place (not enough 
space). 

 A room which only seats 14 without storage is not adequate. 

 If the space is to be used flexibly it is not clear where the tables will be 
stored. 

 Opening hours should be clarified. 

 
 

Page 11



Windsor Road Residents’ Association 
 

 A temporary community space for DG1 is welcomed. 
 

 The adequacy of the proposal is however questioned, with a limited 
meeting room for only 14 people. 
 

 The temporary provision would not accommodate the kinds of activities 
commonly organised by community groups such as parent and toddler 
groups, school clubs, exercise classes and common interest groups. 

 

 The application is vague in respect of storage, opening hours, access to 
outside space in summer, parking for parents with buggies.   

 
7.3 The above representations are a summary of the comments that have been 

received.  Full details of the representations can be inspected on the 
application file.   

 
8.0 ASSESSMENT 
 

Principle of Development 
 

8.1 The reason that a temporary community facility is being brought forward in 
advance of the permanent facility and the permanent facility proposed to be 
delayed from 101 occupations to 300 occupations, is because of the 
construction logistics and constraints associated with bringing forward the 
local centre.  The design and layout of the local centre involves a number of 
blocks with flats above commercial and community uses including the health 
facility and library as well as the community rooms and shops. The current 
trigger for the permanent facility in the S106 Agreement of 101 dwellings 
occupation would mean that construction would still be going on in the local 
centre area around the community rooms whilst the facility was in use.  This 
would result in health and safety and access issues to the community facility.  
Both the library and health facility have significantly later triggers for provision 
so are not affected by this issue.  

 

Page 12



8.2 The applicant is therefore proposing a variation to the S106 agreement to 
delay the trigger for the permanent community rooms until 300th dwelling 
occupation and the early provision of a temporary community facility to serve 
early needs of the emerging new community prior to the 50th dwelling 
occupation. 

 
8.3 The temporary community room would provide a meeting space for various 

groups to use, as well as a base for the CDO to facilitate community cohesion.  
The CDO has confirmed the temporary community room is appropriate for the 
period prior to the 300 unit occupancy, and supports that the community will 
benefit from the early delivery of a community room.  This will bring forward 
the delivery by 50 units compared to the existing S106 provisions, albeit with a 
smaller, temporary facility.  
 

8.4 Reviewing the phasing plan and the proposed draft phasing plan, the 
developer is still committed to providing the local centre development in 
Phase 1, which includes the permanent community rooms.   This means that 
there will still be early delivery of key facilities for new residents. 
 

8.5 Officers consider that the temporary meeting space of 30m2 is proportionate in 
size to serve the first 300 dwellings.  The CDO has confirmed the size of the 
temporary community room will be appropriate for small group meetings and 
other related community development events such as development updates, 
adult learning courses and youth work. 

 
8.6 At outline stage it was anticipated that there would be some sharing of 

facilities across the North West Cambridge Development (Eddington) and the 
Darwin Green Site.  The Storeys Field Community Centre has been delivered 
early and provides community rooms and events which are publically 
available to new residents of Darwin Green. 
 

8.7 The temporary community facility will not result in the permanent loss of a 
residential apartment, so there is no conflict with Cambridge Local Plan 2018 
policy 3.  The temporary facility will revert back to residential use after 300 
occupations at Darwin Green. 
 
Context of site, design and external spaces 

 
8.8 The external façade of the community centre remains unchanged to that 

already approved under the BDW1 reserved matters planning application.   
 
8.9 There is no signage proposed for the temporary community centre.  The 

Council’s CDO has confirmed this is not necessary given the nature of the 
facility during the early years of the development.  Notwithstanding, the 
imposition of planning condition 6 can ensure any future temporary signage is 
adequately considered. 

 
8.10 The proposal is therefore compliant with Cambridge Local Plan (2018) policies 

55, 56 and 73.  
 

Page 13



 Residential Amenity 
 

8.11 Any impacts on neighbouring properties will be appropriately mitigated by 
noise mitigation measures such as restricting opening hours, insulation 
between the community room and residential properties and restricting 
amplified music or voice. The Environmental Health Officer has raised no 
objections to the proposal, subject to these conditions being recommended 
(see conditions 3, 4 and 5).  Given the low key nature of activities likely to take 
place within the temporary community centre, officers do not consider the use 
to be incompatible with the residential apartments above. 
 

8.12 In respect of potential car drop off, there is a temporary car park located to  
the rear of the sales suite. It is not considered that there would be a significant 
number of comings and goings to the temporary facility by car.  This is 
because of the low key nature of the facility and the likely events which will 
take place.   

 
8.13 The proposal adequately respects the residential amenity of its neighbours 

and the constraints of the site and it is considered that it is compliant with 
Cambridge Local Plan (2018) policies 55 and 58. 

 
Access, Car and Cycle Parking 

 
8.14 The application proposes a level access up to the building for disabled 

access.  
 

8.15 A total of eight car parking spaces are proposed adjacent to the sales centre.  
In addition, there will be two disabled car parking spaces in close proximity. 
Cambridge Local Plan 2018 requires one parking space per 100m2, with one 
disabled parking space. The proposed arrangement exceeds the required car 
parking standards but is considered acceptable given the nature of the 
temporary facility. 
 

8.16 In respect of cycle parking, the application does not provide details of any 
temporary spaces.  The Adopted Cycle Parking standards would suggest at 
least five cycle spaces would be required and in the view of officers some 
additional provision should be provided for the duration of the temporary use.  
There is sufficient adjacent to the disabled car parking bays or next to the 
temporary car park area.  This can be adequately secured through condition 
7.   This arrangement is considered acceptable for the duration of the 
temporary period.  On the above basis, the proposal is compliant with 
Cambridge Local Plan (2018) policy 82. 

 
Highway Safety 
 

8.17 No objections have been raised over Highway Safety by the Highway 
Authority or third party objections.  The proposal is compliant with Cambridge 
Local Plan (2018) policy 81. 

 
 

Page 14



Third Party Representations 

Table 1: Representations Received 
 

Issue Officer response/report section 

Revised trigger point The community room size proposed is 
considered appropriate for the CDO to use and 
hold community meetings. The temporary 
community room will be delivered upon the 50th 
occupation, and will help the CDO build the 
community from early occupation. The meeting 
space is appropriate for the emerging 
community in its early stages.  

Benefits to NIAB frontage 
dwellings 

The existing NIAB frontage dwellings will benefit 
from the temporary community room and 
permanent facility when it is provided. 

Storage  Some storage space is available in the office. 

Outside Access 

 

In respect to outside access in the summer, 
outside access was not provided in the original 
application for the community rooms. Officers 
consider that outside activities for community 
building would not be limited to the general 
building area, and any outside activities could 
be undertaken by the CDO or the community 
themselves in appropriate locations. 

Opening Hours 

 

As discussed above, the hours will be 
conditioned to be the same as the permanent 
community rooms’ hours. 

Parking for parents with buggies Provision may be available within the building 
and will be considered further by the CDO. 

 
9.0 CONCLUSION 

 
9.1 The proposed temporary community room will provide a space and office for 

community development to be undertaken from the early occupation at DG1.  
The external design of the apartment block will remain unchanged and any 
effects on amenity will be minimal, with conditions to mitigate any potential 
noise impacts.  Adequate cycle and car parking can be provided.  APPROVAL 
is recommended. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



10.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVAL and agreement to the provision of the temporary community 
room prior to occupation of the 50th dwelling and a revised trigger for the 
provision of the permanent community facility on occupation of the 300th 
dwelling, as part of a Deed of Variation to the 2013 outline S106 Agreement. 

 
Use  

 
1. The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued on or before the 300th 

occupation of a dwelling at Darwin Green. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt, and because continued use of the 
community room and the building would require review of its impact and 
relationship to the permanent community rooms facility. (Cambridge Local 
Plan 2018 policies 55 and 57). 

 
Return to residential use 

 
2. On discontinuation of the use of the community room hereby permitted, the 

building and associated development of the community room shall be used for 
residential purposes as approved under reserved matters, reference: 
16/0794/REM. 
 
Reason: Cambridge Local Plan 2018 policies 3, 55 and 59. 

 
Hours for the Community Room 
 

3.  The Community Room, hereby approved shall not open outside the hours of: 
 

 0700 to 2300 Monday to Saturday; and,  

 0800 to 2200 Sundays/Bank holidays.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the adjoining and nearby properties. 
(Cambridge Local Plan 2018 Policy 35). 
 
Noise insulation  
 

4. Prior to construction of the building, a scheme for the insulation of the 
community room in order to minimise noise to an acceptable level 
experienced in the residential units as a result of the proximity of the habitable 
rooms to the community room shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. The scheme as approved shall be fully 
implemented before the building hereby permitted is occupied and shall be 
thereafter retained as such. 
 
Reason: To protect the amenity of the above and adjacent properties. 
(Cambridge Local Plan 2018 Policy 35). 
 
Amplified music 

Page 16



 
5. Amplified music or voice shall not be permitted within the community room. 

  
Reason: To protect the amenity of the above and adjacent properties. 
(Cambridge Local Plan Policy 35). 
 
Signage 

 
6. Prior to occupation of the temporary community centre, details of any 

temporary signage associated with the facility shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The temporary signage 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and removed 
following cessation of the temporary use on or before the 300th occupation of 
a dwelling at Darwin Green. 

 
Reason: To maintain the character and appearance of the area. (Cambridge 
Local Plan 2018 Policy 55). 

 
Cycle Parking 

 
7. Prior to occupation of the  temporary community centre, details of facilities for 

the parking of at least six number cycles for use in connection with the 
development hereby permitted shall be  submitted to and approved by the 
local planning authority in writing.  The approved facilities shall be provided in 
accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory provision for the secure storage of bicycles. 
(Cambridge Local Plan 2018 policy 82). 

 
Approved plans 
 

8. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved plans as listed on this decision notice. 

 
Reason:  In the interests of good planning, for the avoidance of doubt and to 
facilitate any future application to the Local Planning Authority under Section 
73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



Appendix A:  Site layout, temporary community facility, DG1 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 18/0355/FUL - Darwin Green One, Land Between Huntingdon Road and Histon Road Cambridge

